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1. SECTION ONE: CORPORATE GOVERNANCE INTRODUCTION
1.1. Preamble
Corporate Governance is a set of rules and procedures governing
relationships between a company's management, its board, its
Committees, its shareholders, the regulators and other stakeholders.
The primary goal of the Company’s corporate governance Manual is
to create and sustain increased value in the Company for the
stakeholders. To achieve this goal, it is necessary amongst other
things, to clearly set forth the principles of appropriate supervision
and good management. The Company believes that it is important
that these principles of governance are made transparent to all the
stakeholders for safeguarding their rights and promoting their
participation in the Com pany's corporate governance process.

1.2. Objectives of Corporate Governance Framework

The objective of Corporate Governance Framework is to promote

the Company as a strong, viable and competitive entity by creating a

strong control environment and an integrated risk management

culture, which are fully aligned with governing Shariah principles.

CG focuses on the conduct of, and relationships between the Board,

management and the Company’s shareholders. It is designed to:

a. Enhancing the role of the Company’s shareholders and
facilitating the exercise of their rights;

b. Stating the competencies and responsibilities of the Board and
the Executive Management;

c. Enhancing the role of the Board and the committees and
developing their capabilities to enhance the Company’s
decision making mechanisms;

d.  Enhance public reputation through increased transparency and
accountability;

e. Permit entities to demonstrate the effective discharge of legal,
shareholders and ethical obligations;

f.  Provide a mechanism of benchmarking of accountability;

g. Assist in detection and prevention of fraud, dishonesty and
unethical behavior;

h. Provide strategic direction and approve corporate strategies;

i.  Monitor management performance;

j. Monitor financial performance; and
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k. Ensure that the Company has well defined policies, procedures
and processes for risk management and internal control.

The external aspect of corporate governance, on the other hand,
concentrates on relationships between the Company and its
stakeholders. Stakeholders are those individuals or institutions that
have an interest in Nayifat; such an interest may arise through
legislation or contract, or by way of social or geographic
relationships. Stakeholders include investors, but also employees,
creditors, suppliers, consumers, regulatory bodies and state
agencies, and the local community in which Nayifat operates.

The structure of the Company reflects the accountability of the

Senior Management to the Board and the accountability of the

Board to the shareholders and other Stakeholders, through relevant

internal systems and policies, each senior department has a separate

policies & procedures which clarifies its duties and responsibilities.

1.3. Access, Amendments and Approval of the CG

a. The Manual is drafted in compliance with the laws of the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, including the Saudi Central Bank
(SAMA) Implementing Regulations of the law on supervisions
of Finance Companies (“SAMA Regulations”), guidelines issued
by the Ministry of Commerce and Investment (“MCI”) the
Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Board of the
Capital Market Authority (“CMA” or “Authority”).

b. The Manual should be adopted by the Board and must be
presented to the General Assembly of Shareholders for review
and approval.

c. The Board shall review the Manual at a minimum once every
year to incorporate necessary amendments and updates as the
Board deems appropriate.

d. The Manual is to be read in conjunction with the Company's
bylaws and the laws of KSA. In the event of any conflicts
between the Manual and the Company's bylaws and/or any
applicable laws, the latter should prevail over the Manual.
Conflict of any of the provisions noted in the Manual with any
existing/future Company documents, if any, should be referred
to the Board Secretary for necessary clarification.

e. The Manual will be available on the Company’s website for

referral and guidance.
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2. SECTION TWO: NAYIFAT'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS MANUAL

2.1. Introduction

As per Chapter 2 / Section 3 of CMA Corporate Governance
Regulations, without prejudice to the powers vested in the General
Assembly, the Board of Directors (The “Board”) of Nayifat Finance
Company (hereinafter also referred to as “Company” or “Nayifat”)
shall assume all the necessary powers for the Company’s
management. The ultimate responsibility for the Company rests
with the Board even if it sets up committees or delegates some of its
powers to a third party. The Board of Directors shall avoid issuing
general or indefinite power of attorney.

The Board of Directors has adopted the Company Governance
Manual including Board Manual, each of which precisely defines the
Board's role, powers, responsibilities and work. This manual, along
with the Company's internal regulations, provides the authority and
governance practices of Nayifat Corporation. This guide has been
prepared taking into account the Company's internal regulations,
the regulations of the Saudi Central Bank, the Companies Law, the
Corporate Governance Regulations issued by the Capital Market

Authority and the leading best practices, without conflict with them.

The Board intends to review the various aspects of Corporate
Governance Framework at least annually and shall make such
changes as it deems necessary, wholly at its own discretion, and to
the extent required under any applicable laws and regulations as

well as to bring them in line with leading practices.

2.2. Responsibility

With reference to Chapter Two of Part Three of the Governance of the

Capital Market Authority "Responsibilities and Competencies of the Board
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of Directors"

The primary responsibility of the Board is to provide effective
oversight over the Company’s affairs for the benefit of its
Shareholders and to balance the interests of its stakeholders, such as
its customers, employees, suppliers and local communities. The
Board is responsible for reviewing the development and execution
of strategies, the selection, and

reviewing performance

compensation of the Chairman, Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and
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senior executives and ensuring transparency of communication and
disclosure of financial and non-financial information, including

establishing an effective audit process.

Below are the main responsibilities of the Board of Directors:

2.3. Defining Mission, Vision, Strategy and Objectives

The Board will set the vision for Nayifat and will provide direction in

addressing what the Company wants to do. This will be achieved by

the Board:

a. defining the vision and values of the Company and ensuring
that these are realised and upheld;

b. ensuring clear accountabilities and communication within the
Company and monitoring the activities of the Company;

c. creating a positive climate which fosters constructive challenge
to assumptions about the business;

d. Determining the most appropriate capital structure of the

Company.

Once it has set the vision for the Company, the Board shall set the

objectives which will define the stages towards realising the set

vision. The Board shall then define the strategies, which will assist
the Company in delivering on its objectives. In meeting those
responsibilities, the Board shall:

a. setthekey strategic aims and determine the strategic objectives
and outcomes required;

b. approve long term business plans, for both revenue and capital
expenditures and financial strategy that support the
achievement of the corporate strategy and plan;

c. establish a framework for the approval and regular review of
policies and plans to achieve business objectives;

d. define the Company’s optimal financial and capital structure
and approve major capital expenditure, acquisitions and
divestitures;

e. follow up with management to assess that all assets are
managed efficiently and effectively, and that capital is properly
utilized, so as to maintain long term viability and sustainability
of the Company and its assets;

f. Periodically review and approve the Company’s organization

and functional structure.
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g.  Annual business plans, cash flow projections, forecasts and long
term plans;

h.  Annual Budgets including capital, manpower and overhead
budgets, along with variance analyses;

i.  Quarterly operating results of Nayifat as a whole and in terms
of its operating divisions or business segments;

j-  Internal audit reports on cases of fraud or irregularities of a
material nature;

k. Management letter issued by the external auditors;

I.  Details of joint venture or collaboration agreements or
agreements with distributors, agents, etc,;

m. Promulgation or amendment of a law, rule or regulation,
enforcement of an accounting standard and such other
matters as may affect Nayifat;

n. Status and implications of any law suit of material nature, filed
by or against Nayifat;

o. Any demand or prosecution notice received from regulatory
authorities, which may be material;

p. Default in payment of principal and/or profits, including
penalties on late payments and other dues, to a creditor, bank
or financial institution;

q. Significant public or product liability claims likely to be made
against Nayifat, including any adverse judgment or order made
on the conduct of Nayifat or of another company that may bear

negatively on Nayifat.

2.4. The Assessment

(As per CMA-CG Regulation, Article 39 “The Assessment” - Still a guiding
Article)

a) The Board shall develop, based on the proposal of the N&R

committee, the necessary mechanisms to annually assess the
performance of the Board, its members and committees and the
Executive Management using key performance indicators linked to
the extent to which the strategic objectives of the Company have
been achieved, the quality of the risk managementand the efficiency
of the internal control systems, among others, provided that
weaknesses and strengths shall be identified and a solution shall be

proposed for the same in the best interests of the Company.
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b) The procedures of performance assessment shall be in writing and
clearly stated and disclosed to the Board members and parties
concerned with the assessment.

c) The performance assessment shall entail an assessment of the
skills and experiences of the Board, identification of the weaknesses
and strengths of the Board and shall attempt to resolve such
weaknesses using the available methods, such as nominating
competent professional staff able to improve the performance of the
Board. The performance assessment shall also entail the assessment
of the mechanisms of the Board's activities in general.

d) The individual assessment of the Board members shall take into
account the extent of effective participation of the member and
his/her commitment to performing his/her duties and
responsibilities, including attending the Board and its committee’s
meetings and dedicating adequate time thereof.

e) The Board shall carry out the necessary arrangements to obtain an
assessment of its performance from a competent third party every
three years.

f) Non-Executive Directors shall carry out a periodic assessment of
the performance of the chairman of the Board after getting the
opinions of the Executive Directors, without the presence of the
chairman of the Board in the discussion on this matter, provided that

weaknesses and strengths shall be identified and a solution shall be

proposed for the same in the best interests of the Company.

2.5. Custodianship
The Board shall accomplishiits role as a custodian for the Company’s

affairs and as a guardian of its assets by committing to the following:

2.5.1. Responsibilities in relation to Risk Management

a. In line with Chapter 5 Articles 70, 71 (Guiding Articles) of the
Corporate Governance Regulations issued by CMA, the Board
shall ensure that sufficient management resources are allocated
to the identification, assessment and appropriate treatment of
business risks which Nayifat is exposed to. These risks include
any new risks arising as a result of a change in the Company’s
operations such as expansions and new service offerings as well

as changes in the regulatory environment.
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b. In line with Article 38 of Implementing Regulations of the

Finance Companies Control Law issued by SAMA, the Board
approves and annually updates the risk management policy of
the finance company.

c. The Board shall also ensure that adequate and transparent
disclosures of Nayifat's risks management are made in the
Annual Reports.

Responsibilities in relation to Risk Management, the Board shall
also ensure that adequate and transparent disclosures of

Nayifat's risks management are made in the Annual Reports.

2.5.2. Responsibilities in relation to Internal Controls Framework

a. The Board periodically shall assess the adequacy of the
Company’s Conflict of Interest and Business Conduct
Guidelines.

b. The Board shall review policies and procedures of the
Company.

c. The Board shall ensure the establishment of a corporate
governance framework in line with CMA regulations and SAMA
Implementing Regulations.

d. The Board shall ensure the development of documented
policies that include mechanisms for compensation, settle
disputes with stakeholders, and establish relationships with
clients and vendors and company’s social contributions.

e. As per Article 21 (2) of CMA Corporate Governance
Regulations, the Board shall conduct an annual review of the
efficiency of the Company’s internal control procedures.
Although this will be carried out by the Audit Committee on
behalf of the Board, it will not absolve the Board of its
responsibility in this regard.

2.5.3. Responsibilities in relation to Management Arrangements

a. As per Article 22 of the Company’s Bylaws, the Board may
appoint MD for the company, determining his authorities,
powers, benefits and any other privileges, who is allowed to
serve as the managing director and as a member.

b. The Board shall ensure there are appropriate policies and

systems in place to recruit, develop, retain and remunerate staff.
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c. The Board shall review succession plans and management

development programs for CEO and senior management.

2.5.4. Responsibilities in relation to Reporting

a. The Board shall ensure the integrity of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting system and also shall ensure
compliance with all applicable laws and regulations related to
reporting the Company’s activities and results.

b. As per Article 21 of the Company’s Bylaws, the board of
directors' report to the ordinary general assembly includes a full
statement about what the board members got in terms of
Remunerations, dividends, attendance allowance, expenses
and other benefits during the fiscal year.

c.  AsperArticle 48 of the Company’s Bylaws the board of directors
prepares at the end of every year an inventory for The
company's assets and liabilities at that date, as well as preparing
the company’s budget, profit and loss accounting and a report
about the company’s activities and its financial position of the
past year. This manual includes the method suggested by the

board for distributing the dividends.

2.5.5. Responsibilities in relation to Performance Monitoring

In line with Article 21 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations,

the Board will act as a scrutiniser of management’s performance in

accomplishing the Company’s objectives and meeting the
approved performance targets. Specifically, the Board will:

a. lay down the plans, policies, strategies and main objectives of
the Company; supervising their implementation and reviewing
them periodically and ensuring that the human and financial
resources required to fulfill them are available including:

i setting acomprehensive strategy for the Company, key
business plans and policies and mechanisms of the risk
management and review and guide them

ii. determining the most appropriate capital structure for
the Company, its strategies and financial objectives,
and approving all kinds of estimated budgets;

iii. overseeing the main capital expenditures of the

Company and the acquisition or disposal of assets;
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iv. setting performance indicators, and monitoring the

implementation thereof and the overall performance
of the Company;

\2 reviewing and approving the organizational and
human resources structures of the Company on a
periodic basis;

Vi. ensuring that the financial and human resources
required for achieving the objectives and main plans
of the Company are available;

set rules and procedures for internal control and generally
overseeing them, including:

i. Developing a written policy to remedy actual and
potential conflicts of interest scenarios for each of the
Board members, the Executive Management, and the
shareholders. This includes misuse of the Company’s
assets and facilities and the mismanagement resulting
from transactions with Related Parties;

ii. ensuring the integrity of the financial and accounting
rules, including rules relating to the preparation of
financial reports;

iii. ensuring the implementation of appropriate control
procedures for risk assessment and management by
generally forecasting the risks that the Company may
encounter and creating an environment which is
aware of the culture of risk management at the
Company level and disclosing such risks transparently
to the Stakeholders and parties related to the
Company;

iv. Reviewing the effectiveness of the Company's internal
control procedures on an annual basis.

Setforth specific and explicit policies, standards and procedures
for membership in the Board, without prejudice to the
mandatory provisions of CMA CG Regulations, and
implementing them following approval by the General
Assembly.

Develop a written policy that regulates the relationship with

Stakeholders pursuant to the provisions of these Regulations.
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e.

Set policies and procedures to ensure the Company’s
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations and the
Company’s obligation to disclose material information to
shareholders and Stakeholders, and ensuring the compliance of
the Executive Management with these policies and procedures.
Supervising the management of the Company'’s finances, its
cash flows as well as its financial and credit relationships with
third parties.

providing recommendations to the Extraordinary General
Assembly as to what it deems appropriate regarding the
following:

i.  increasing or decreasing the share capital of the
Company;

ii. Dissolving the Company before the end of its term as
specified in its bylaws or deciding the continuity of the
Company.

providing recommendation to the Ordinary General Assembly
as to what it deems appropriate regarding:

i. using the consensual reserve of the Company, if such
has been formed by the Extraordinary General
Assembly and has not been allocated to a specific
purpose;

ii. Forming additional financial allocations or reserves for
the Company; and

iii. The method of distributing the net profits of the

Company.

prepare the Company's interim and annual financial statements
and approving them before publishing them
Prepare the Annual Board report.
ensure the accuracy and integrity of the data and information
which must be disclosed pursuant to the applicable policies and
systems in respect of disclosure and transparency;
develop effective communication channels allowing
shareholders to continuously and periodically review the
various aspects of the Company's businesses as well as any
material developments;

Form specialized committees of the Board pursuant to

resolutions that shall specify the term, powers and
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responsibilities of such committees as well as the manner used
by the Board to monitor such committees. Such resolutions
shall also specify the names of the members and their duties,
rights and obligations and shall evaluate the performance and
activities of these committees and their members;

Set the values and standards that govern the work at the
Company.

Regularly review and monitor performance in relation to plans,
budgets, controls and decisions, and seek explanations for any
major deviations.

Obtain and consider performance information in relation to
stakeholder feedback and benchmark against comparable
organizations and activities.

Obtain assurance that the business affairs are conducted
lawfully and in accordance with generally accepted and specific
standards of reporting, performance and probity.

Ensure the soundness of financial and accounting systems,
including financial reporting systems and that the Company
complies with all relevant regulatory requirements.

Ensure the Audit Committee has established procedures for
monitoring internal auditing, accounting practices, internal
accounting controls and reporting, and conduct executive
sessions with auditors without the presence of management.

In discharging its oversight role, the Board is empowered to
investigate any matter, brought to its attention with full access
to all books, records, facilities and personnel of the Company
and the power to retain outside counsel, auditors or
consultants, or incur other expenses for this purpose, which the
Company shall pay.

The Board may require any officer or employee of the Company,
the Company’s outside legal counsel, and the Company’s
external auditors to meet with the Board or any committee of
the Board and such meetings will be conducted in the presence
of the CEO, unless there is a conflict of interest with him.

The Board will ensure that proper mechanisms are in place to
establish good relationships with clients and vendors and to

maintain confidentiality of their information.
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Distribution of Competencies and Duties
The organisational structure of the Company shall specify the
competencies and distribute the duties between the Board and the
Executive Management (For more information, refer to the OC, policies,
procedures and charters of Board, committees, Executives Managements) in
line with the best practices in Corporate Governance, and to improve
the efficiency of the Company's decision making and to achieve a
balance of powers and authorities across the Board and the
Executive Management, and to achieve this, the Board shall:
1) Approve and develop internal policies in respect of the Company's
business, including specifying the duties, competencies and
responsibilities assigned to the various organisational levels;
2) approving a written and detailed policy thatidentifies the powers
delegated to the Executive Management, a matrix stating these
powers, means of implementation and the period of delegation\
The Board may request the Executive Management to submit
periodic reports in respect of its exercise of such delegated powers;
3) Identifying the matters on which the Board reserves the power to
decide.
2.5.6. Representation and Commitment
a. As per Nayifat's Bylaws, the board of directors’ authorities
includes to represent the company in its relationships with
others, with all Governmental sector, Private sector, Shari'a
courts, Judicial bodies, Board of Grievance, Capital Market
Authority, Office of Labor, the higher and primary committees,
Commercial Paper Committees,

Rights

all judicial committees,

Arbitrary  Panels,  Civil Organizations, Police
Departments, Chamber of Commerce and Industry, private
agencies, different types of companies and corporation inside
the Kingdom and abroad.

b. The members of the Board commit to giving their time and
commitment to attend meetings and keeping themselves
updated as to relevant developments in the Company’s
business, market, regulatory and legal arena so as to identify
potential road-blocks to the Company achieving its objectives.
In all their actions, the members of the Board commit to
monitoring and safeguarding the Company’s reputation and

continuously working towards enhancing it.
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2.5.7. Protecting Shareholder Rights

The Board of Directors is committed to protecting the rights of
shareholders in a way that ensures justice and equality between
them, and not to discriminate between shareholders who own the
same class of shares or prevent them from accessing any of their
rights, and the company will determine in its internal policies the
necessary procedures to ensure that all shareholders exercise their
rights, including: (rights related to shares, access to information,
effectiveness of communication with shareholders, election of

board members, attendance and recommendation of assemblies,

and his/her share of dividends).

2.6. Election and composition of the Board of Directors
2.6.1. Criteria for Selection to the Board of Directors

a. The Board shall seek members from diverse professional
backgrounds who combine a broad range of experience
and expertise with a reputation for integrity.

b. Inline with Articles 17, 18 of CMA Corporate Governance
Regulations and Article 17 of Nayifat's Bylaws, the General
Assembly shall appoint the members of the Board of
Directors for the period stipulated in the Articles of
Association, and the Articles of Association shall determine
the number of members of the Board of Directors, provided
that it shall not be less than three.

c. InlinewithArticles 11 and 12 of Implementing Regulations
of the Law of Finance Companies Control and in line with
Requirements for Appointments to Senior Positions by
SAMA, each board member or senior manager’s
appointment is conditional on satisfying professional
eligibility requirements and obtaining approval from
SAMA.

d. Further the Board shall ensure that the accumulative voting
technique is followed for selection of Board members atthe
Shareholders’ meeting.

e. The Company shall notify SAMA and CMA of the names of
the Board members and description of their memberships
within five business days from the commencement date of

the Board term or from the date of their appointment,
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whichever is shorter, as well as any changes that may affect
their membership within five business days from the
occurrence of such change.

f. The member of the Board of Directors must be of
professional competence who have the necessary
experience, knowledge, skill and independence, to enable
him to exercise his duties efficiently and competently,
taking into account that he must have in particular the
following: (leadership ability - efficiency - ability to guide -
financial knowledge - health fitness), Each member of the
Board is also committed to the principles of honesty,
honesty, loyalty, care and interest in the interests of the
company and shareholders and put them ahead of his
personal interest, including in particular the following:

(honesty - loyalty - care and attention).

2.6.2. Composition of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors shall at all times consist of a majority of the
non-executive members of the Board of Directors, and the number
of its independent members shall not be less than two or one-third

of the members of the Board, whichever is greater.

2.7. Term for Membership and Retirement from the Board

(End of the Board of Directors' term or retirement of its members):

1. The Board of Directors shall convene the Ordinary General
Assembly well before the end of its session to elect a Board of
Directors for a new term. If the election cannot be held and the
current Board term ends, its members shall continue to perform their
duties until the election of a Board of Directors for a new term,
provided that the term of continuation of the outgoing members of
the Board shall not exceed ninety days from the date of the end of
the Board session, and the Board of Directors shall take the
necessary measures to elect a Board of Directors to replace it before
the expiry of the continuity period specified in this paragraph.

2.Ifthe Chairman and members of the Board of Directors retire, they
shall convene the Ordinary General Assembly to elect a new Board
of Directors, and the retirement shall not take effect until the election

of the new Board, provided that the term of continuation of the
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retired Board shall not exceed (one hundred and twenty) days from
the date of such retirement, and the Board of Directors shall take the
necessary measures to elect a Board of Directors to replace it before
the expiry of the continuity period specified in this paragraph.
3. A member of the Board of Directors may retire from the
membership of the Board by a written notification addressed to the
Chairman of the Board, and if the Chairman of the Board retires, the
notification shall be addressed to the rest of the members of the
Board and the Secretary of the Board, and the retirement shall be
effective - in both cases - from the date specified in the notification.
In the event that a member of the Board of Directors resigns and has
observations on the performance of the Company, he must submita
written statement thereof to the Chairman of the Board of Directors,
and this statement must be presented to the members of the Board
of Directors.
4. If the position of one of the members of the Board of Directors of
the Company becomes vacant due to his death or retirement and
this vacancy does not result in a breach of the conditions necessary
for the validity of the meeting of the Board due to the lack of the
number of its members from the minimum stipulated in the Articles
of Association or the Company's Articles of Association, the Board
may appoint, temporarily, to the vacant position a person who has
experience and sufficiency, provided that he shall be informed of
this by the Commercial Register, as well as the Authority, within
(fifteen) days from the date of appointment, and that the
appointment shall be presented to the Ordinary General Assembly
at the first meeting. to her, and the appointed member shall
complete the term of his predecessor.
5. If the necessary conditions for the validity of the convening of the
Board of Directors are not met due to the lack of the number of its
members from the minimum stipulated in the Articles of Association
or in the Company's Articles of Association, the rest of the members
shall convene the Ordinary General Assembly within (sixty) days to
elect the necessary number of members.
6. In the event that a board of directors is not elected for a new term
or completes the necessary number of board members in
accordance with paragraphs 1,2 and 5 of this Article, any interested

party may request the competent judicial authority to appoint from
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among those with experience and competence and in the number it

deems appropriate to supervise the management of the company

and call the general assembly to convene within ninety days to elect

anew board of directors or complete the necessary number of board

members, as the case may be, or that The company is required to be

dissolved.

a.

In accordance with the Saudi Companies Law and Article
17 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations, the
Ordinary General Assembly shall appoint the Directors for
the term specified in the Company bylaws. Article 17 of
Nayifat's Bylaws concurs with this term for directorship.

In accordance with Articles 68 and 70 of the Companies
Law, the membership of the Board of Directors shall end
upon the expiry of the term of appointment or resignation,
and the General Assembly may, upon the recommendation
of the Board of Directors, terminate the membership of any
members who are absent from attending three consecutive
meetings or five separate meetings during their term of
office without an acceptable excuse. And the Ordinary
General Assembly may, atany time, remove all or any of the
members of the Board of Directors even if the Company's
Articles of Association provide otherwise, without
prejudice to the right of the dismissed member to hold the
Company liable if the removal is carried out without
acceptable justification or at an inopportune time.

Upon termination of the membership of a member of the
Board of Directors by any means of termination, the
Company shall notify the Saudi Central Bank and the
Capital Market Authority and announce in the Saudi
Exchange immediately specifying the reasons for such

termination.

Resignation

Resignation of a Director will take effect from the time it is

communicated to the Board, or any other agreed time.
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Other Requirements for Board Membership

Each Director must devote the time and attention necessary to fulfill
his obligations as a Director. Key obligations include appropriate
attendance at Board meetings and an adequate review of
preparatory material. Directors are also expected to attend the

General Assembly Meetings of the Shareholders.

Minority Shareholders
Minority Shareholders as a class are facilitated to contest election of
Directors by proxy solicitation. To this end, Nayifat shall comply

with all legal obligations in relation to minority Shareholder rights.

2.8. Separation of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

a. Theseparation of the roles of the CEO and Chairman of the
Board is a method of ensuring an appropriate balance of
power, increasing accountability and increasing the
capacity of the Board for independent decision making and
therefore balancing between authority, functions and their
control.

b. Inlinewith this requirement, the Chairman will notassume
the role of an Executive of the Company. The Chairman will
be selected by the vote of the majority of the Directors.

2.9. Role of the Chairman
The Chairman of the Board is responsible for leading the Board and
for ensuring that it successfully discharges its overall responsibility
for the Company as a whole. According to the Article 22 of Nayifat
Bylaws the functions and responsibilities of the Chairman shall be to
preside and head Board of Directors meeting and General Assembly
meeting, to call for Board of Directors’ meetings and General
Assembly meetings, to have the casting vote in case of tie in Boards
of Directors voting, to represent the company in its relationships
with others; with all governmental sector, private sector, Shari'a
courts, Judicial bodies, Board of Grievance and all judicial
committees inside the Kingdom and abroad. In addition, the
Chairman is expected to fulfill the following responsibilities:

a. Direct the Board discussions to effectively use time to

address the critical issues facing the Company.
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b.

Ensure that the Board provides guidance in setting up the
vision, aims, strategies and policies of the Company and
continually monitors the steps taken and success in
achieving these strategies.

Ensure that Directors are enabled and encouraged to play
their role in the meetings and have adequate opportunities
to express their views.

Ensure that Directors are provided with sufficient and
timely information prior to the meeting and to ensure that
minutes properly reflect decisions made at the meetings.
ensure that the Board members obtain complete, clear,
accurate and non-misleading information in due course;
ensure that the Board effectively discusses all fundamental
issues in due course;

encourage the Board members to effectively perform their
duties in order to achieve the interests of the Company;
ensure that there are actual communication channels with
shareholders and conveying their opinions to the Board;
encourage constructive relationships and effective
participation between the Board and the Executive
Management on the one hand, and the Executive, Non-
Executive and Independent Directors on the other hand,
and creating a culture that encourages constructive
criticism;

prepare agendas of the Board meetings, taking into
consideration any matters raised by Board members or the
external auditor and consult with the Board members and
the Chief Executive Officer upon preparing the Board's
agenda; and

Convene periodic meetings with the Non-Executive
Directors without the presence of any executive officers of
the Company.

notify the Ordinary General Assembly while convening of
the businesses and contracts in which any Board member
has direct or indirect interest, the notification shall include
the information provided by the member to the Board as

per paragraph 14 of Article 28 of CMA Corporate

Governance Regulations; this notification shall be
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accompanied by a special report of the Company's external
auditor.

m. Uphold the Corporate Governance Framework.

The Chairman also has an important responsibility to establish a
healthy working relationship between the Board and the CEO. He
will be the major point of contact between the Board and the CEO
and shall be kept fully informed of key issues by the CEO on all
matters, which may be of interest to the Board. The Board, on the
basis of the competence, achievements and record as a leader, shall
select the Chairman.

If the chairman is unable to assume his responsibilities and roles due
to any reasons attributed to force majeure, the vice chairman shall
act temporarily on behalf of him.

The Board shall conduct an annual review of the Chairman’s
performance to ensure that the Chairman is providing the best
leadership for the Company in the long and short term.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee will assist the Board
to establish criteria for evaluation of the Chairman’s performance

and such criteria shall be communicated to the Chairman.

2.10.Tasks and Duties of the Board Members:

Each member of the Board shall, being a Board member, perform the

following tasks and duties:

1. Providing proposals to develop the strategy of the Company.

2. Monitoring the performance of the Executive Management and
the extent to which it has achieved the objectives and purposes
of the Company.

3. Reviewing reports related to the performance of the Company.

4. Ensuring the integrity and impartiality of the financial
statements and information of the Company

5. Ensuring that the financial control and risk management
systems are sound.

6. Determining the appropriate level of remunerations of the
members of the Executive Management.

7. Expressing opinions as to the appointment and dismissal of

members of the Executive Management.
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8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Participating in developing the succession and replacement
plans of executive positions within the Company

Complying fully with the provisions of the Companies Law,
Capital Market Law, their implementing regulations, the
relevant regulations and the bylaws when performing his/her
duties as a member of the Board and abstaining from taking or
participating in any action that constitute mismanagement of
the Company’s affairs.

Attending the Board and the General Assembly meetings, and
not being absent except for legitimate excuse of which the
chairman of the Board shall be notified by prior notice, or for
emergency reasons.

Allocating sufficient time to fulfill his/her responsibilities and
preparing for the Board and its committees meetings and
effectively participating therein, including raising relevant
questions and carrying discussions with the Senior Executives.
Studying and analyzing all information related to the matters
looked into by the Board before expressing an opinion on the
same.

Enabling other Board members to express their opinions freely,
and encouraging the Board to deliberate on the subjects and
obtain the views of the competent members of the Company’s
Executive Management and others, when necessary.

Notifying the Board fully and immediately of any interest, either
direct or indirect, in the businesses and contracts that are
executed for the Company's account, the notification shall
include the nature and extent of such interest, the names of
concerned persons, and the expected benefit to be obtained
directly or indirectly from interest whether financial or non-
financial. The concerned member shall abstain from voting on
any decisions issued in connection therewith in compliance
with the provisions of the Companies Law, the Capital Market
Law and their implementing regulations.

Notifying the Board fully and immediately of his/her
participation, directly or indirectly, in any businesses that may
compete with the Company or lead to competing with the

Company, directly orindirectly, in respect of any of its activities,
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in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Law, the
Capital Market Law and their implementing regulations.

16. Refraining from disclosing or announcing any secrets he/she
came across through his/her membership in the Board to any
shareholder of the Company, unless such disclosure is made
during the meetings of the General Assembly, or to a third party,
in pursuance with the provisions of the Companies Law, the
Capital Market Law and their implementing regulations.

17. Working on the basis of complete information, in good faith and
with the necessary care and diligence for the interest of the
Company and all shareholders.

18. Recognizing his/her duties, roles and responsibilities arising
from the membership.

19. Developing his/her knowledge in the field of the Company's
business and activities and in the related financial, commercial
and industrial fields.

20. Resigning from the membership of the Board if he/she is unable
to fully fulfill his/her duties in the Board.

Duties of the Independent Director

Independent Director of the Board shall effectively participate in the

following duties:

1. Expressing his/her independent opinion in respect of strategic
issues and the Company’s policies and performance and
appointing members of the Executive Management.

2. Ensuring that the interest of the Company and its shareholders
are taken into account and given priority in case of any conflicts
of interest.

3. Overseeing the development of the Company’s Corporate
Governance rules, and monitoring the implementation of the

rules by the Executive Management.

The Board’s Secretary
a. Inline with the Article 22 of Nayifat Bylaws the Board of
Directors shall appoint a secretary to do the secretarial
functions of the board, and determine his remuneration

and duration.
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b.

The Secretary shall be responsible of all secretarial work of
the Board, arrange for the Board's meetings, prepare the
meeting’s agenda and presentation and forward them to
the Board’s members, maintain all Board’s documents
including memos, minutes of meetings, resolutions and
correspondences and shall communicate the Board’s
resolutions and directions to the concerned parties in the
Company.

The Secretary shall confirm the quorum at the beginning of

each meeting and shall provide the Chairman with the

absent member’'s names and reasons for their absence, if
provided.

Without prejudice to the above, the Secretary’s power shall

include
a. documenting the Board meetings and preparing

minutes therefore, which shall include the
discussions and deliberations carried during such
meetings, as well as the place, date, times on
which such meetings commenced and concluded;
and recording the decisions of the Board and
voting results and retaining them in a special and
organized register, and including the names of the
attendees and any reservations they expressed (if
any), Such minutes shall be signed by all of the
attending members;

b. retaining the reports submitted to the Board and
the reports prepared by it;

c. providing the Board members with the agenda of
the Board meeting and related worksheets,
documents and information and any additional
information, related to the topics included in the
agenda items, requested by any Board member;

d. ensuringthatthe Board members comply with the
procedures approved by the Board;

e. notifying the Board members of the dates of the
Board’s meetings within sufficient time prior to

the date specified for the meeting;

o ‘ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL

oulzme slael J addloly dispe ploral Jlosl Joun
I3 Les Byl 5¥1 lme 35Uy prammy Lilazs¥lg 3,1y
Phly s wlylyally cilelewa¥l jolxey ol SAL
& Auall UL I Glonsis Y1 pulme b3

as,adl

glaiz JS Al @ Gsslall laddl 51,3L ud) cnal psdy
3 des @313 cpelue

(Lo yolma sluels 35¥ pulze cleboir| Gdgs (1
Gl e¥slally lasbll peas of o &l
oe JI ZBLAYL colelara¥ sin JM5 oyx
Ll ly clelan¥l sda sy cligly s
Coguadll @l 51¥1 (ulzme b8 Juexady
bt cplitay pols Joa @ Lo blazsl
(229 o)) Lags] cullaams glg ¢y il ¢ loss]
slac¥l prex Jud (o ol sda audsd s
ol

BIoY Ledme J) Zeaall laslly LlasYl (o
Laaed G laxdly

gl Jloel Joamy 8)15¥1 ulzma slael wigss (¢
Slaglally 35Ully Jaall Blgly 3)15¥1 ulms
Sl adlsl clgla gly alall @l
G JacHl ot 3932 3 Ayl e sl
BIY1 dma sLarel e guinc s Lollay

el ¥l By15¥1 pudma slael Al e ST (5
SIo¥ udoes LB o0 Bokazall

B R S T e RN o
samll il b IS iy I35 315y udna
& Lo

(24 - 68)

www.nayifat.com

d



Ul
NayiFat

f.  presenting the draft minutes to the Board
members to provide their opinions on them
before signing the same;

g. ensuring that the Board members receive, fully
and promptly, a copy the minutes of the Board’s
meetings as well as the information and
documents related to the Company;

h. coordinating among the Board members;

i.  regulating the disclosure register of the Board and
Executive Management as per Article 89 of CMA
Corporate Governance Regulations;

j.  Providing assistance and advice to the Board
members.

e. The Secretary of the Board may not be dismissed except
pursuant to a decision of the Board.

f.  The Board must specify the conditions that the secretary
must meet, provided that they include at least one of the
following:

a. He/she holds a bachelor degree in law, finance,
accounting or administration or their equivalent,
and has relevant practical experience of not less
than three years;

b. He/she has relevant practical experience of not

less than five years.

2.11.Director Orientation and Continuing Training

(As per CMA-CG Regulation, Article 37 “Training” - Still guiding Article)

According to Article 37 of CMA Corporate Governance
Regulations, the Board shall provide an orientation program for
new Directors which will include presentations by executive
management on the Company’s strategic plans, its significant
financial, accounting and risk management issues, its legal
affairs, its compliance programs, its operations, its Conflict of
Interest and Business Conduct Guidelines, its management
structure, its key policies, practices, executive officers and its
internal and external auditors. In addition, each incoming
Director will be provided with copies of Nayifat's Bylaws, the
executive summary of the corporate plan and other appropriate

information.
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2.12.Board Meetings Organization and Minutes

d.

The Chairman will determine the degree of formality required
at each meeting while maintaining the decorum of such
meetings. In any event the Chairman will ensure that all
members are heard and will take care that the issues are
properly debated and concluded with a reasonably formal
resolution recording the conclusions reached.

The Board has delegated day-to-day operational and strategic
management of the Company to the CEO and through to the
senior management team. However, the Board retains the
powers of oversight relating to general strategic and policy
related issues, the Company’s capital structure and declaration
of dividends. It is not necessary for every decision taken by the
Directors to be made at a Board meeting. Meeting by tele-
conference or video-conference or any other form of
technology that the Directors have consented to, are all
acceptable.

Annual Reports should contain a statement on the number of
Board meetings held during the reporting period at which a
Director could attend, and the number of meetings which the
Director did in fact attend. Absence from Board meeting(s), will
not excuse Directors from their duties to the Company in
relation to the matters considered and decided.

At the beginning of each fiscal year of the Company, the Board
shall put a schedule for its meetings during the year. The next
Board meeting shall be confirmed at the end of each Board’s
meeting.

The Board shall ensure that members are actively involved with
the CEO in setting the agendas for the full Board meetings. A
designated Director or Directors shall work with the CEO to
create Board agendas (incorporating other Board members’
input as provided) and ensure that all the relevant material is
provided in a timely manner prior to each meeting.

The agenda of the Board meeting may not be changed during
that meeting, unless all members of the Board are presentat that
meeting and give their consent to changing the agenda items.
The agenda may also be changed in a situation where it

becomes necessary for the Board to undertake certain activities
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in order to protect Nayifat from damage, or in the event of a
resolution, the subject of a possible existence of conflict of
interests between Board members and Nayifat.
Information and data that is important to the Board’s
understanding of the business shall be distributed in writing to
the Board, well in advance of the meeting. Such information will
be forwarded by the Secretary to the Board after the approval of
the Chairman. As a general rule, presentation on specific
subjects shall be sent to the Board members, well in advance of
the meeting, so that Board meeting time may be conserved and
discussion time focused on questions that the Board may have
about the subject. On those occasions where the subject matter
is too sensitive to put on paper, the presentation shall be
discussed at the meeting.
The Board shall be given sufficient information to exercise fully
its governance functions. This information comes from a variety
of sources, including management reports, personal
observation, a comparison of performance to plans, articles in
various business publications, etc.
Directors are expected to attend the Company’s General
Meeting, Board meetings and meetings of committees and
subcommittees on which they serve.
The Board shall convene no less than four meetings per year,
and no less than one meeting every three months.
As per Article 24 of Nayifat Bylaws, The Board shall meet upon
the invitation of its chairman or upon a request from one of its
members. and the call shall be authenticated in the way that
Board see itis convenient. The invitation to the meeting shall be
sent to each of the Board members no less than five days prior
to the date of the meeting accompanied by its agenda and the
necessary documents and information, unless circumstance
require convening an emergency meeting, the invitation
accompanied with the agenda and necessary documents and
information may be sent within a period less than the five days.
. The meeting shall not be valid unless attended by half of the
Board members, provided that the number of attendees shall

not be less than three, unless the Company's bylaws stated

greater percentage or number.
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Remarks of the Board Members

a. If any member of the Board has any remarks in respect of
the performance of the Company or any of the matters
presented and which was not resolved in the Board
meeting, such remarks shall be recorded and the
procedures taken or to be taken by the Board in connection
therewith must be set forth in the minutes of the Board
meeting.

b. Ifamember of the Board expresses an opinion differs from
the Board resolution, such opinion must be recorded in

detail in the minutes of the Board meeting.

Organizing the Attendance of the Board Meetings

a. The Attendance of Board meetings, and dealing with cases of
irregular attendance by members shall be organized.

b. AnIndependent Director of the Board shall make every effort to
attend all meetings in which important and material decisions

affecting the position of the Company are made.

The Agenda of Board Meetings

a) The Board shall approve the agenda once the Board meeting is
convened. Should any member of the Board raise any objection in
respect of such agenda, such objection shall be recorded in the
minutes of the meeting,

b) Each member of the Board is entitled to propose additional items

to the agenda.

Minutes of Meetings

® In accordance with of Saudi Companies Law and Article 26 of
Nayifat Bylaws, deliberations and resolutions of the Board will
be recorded in minutes. Such minutes shall be entered in a
special register, which shall be signed by the Chairman of the
Board and the Secretary.

® The Board meetings shall be recorded in the sequentially
numbered minutes of meeting, which shall reflect the course of
proceedings during the sittings and shall contain the names of
the persons present at the meeting, agenda of the meeting, the

exact words of the adopted resolutions and issues, opinions,
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number of votes given to particular resolutions and dissenting
opinions.

® Resolutions and Minutes of meetings shall be signed by
Chairman, Board members who present and Secretary, these
minutes shall be recorded in a special register signed by
Chairman and Secretary. modern technology may be used to
sign and prove the deliberations, decisions and record the

minutes.

Code of Conduct and Expectations from Directors
The Board has adopted Regulations of Conduct for Directors to
promote ethical and responsible decision making by the Directors.
The Regulation of Conduct embraces the values of honesty,
integrity, excellence, accountability and independence as per Article
83 of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations.
The Directors have adopted the following Regulation of Conduct in
respect of the Directors’ behavior and in this regards, they shall:
® Act honestly, in good faith and in the best interests of the
Company.
® Accept collective responsibility for the decisions of the
Board.
® (Come to meetings on time and demonstrate assertive
communication skills in both speaking and listening.
® Not engage in conduct likely to bring the Company into
disrepute.
® Maintain sufficient detailed knowledge of the business and
performance to make informed decisions.
® The Board members will carry out their responsibilities to
the exclusion of any personal advantage.
® Board members should maintain the confidentiality of
non-public information about Nayifat or its activities or
operations to which they have access by virtue of their
functions as Board members. If Board members are
required to disclose confidential Nayifat information by
law, they should inform the Chairman and the CEO of any

such requirement at the earliest possible opportunity.
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2.13.Disclosure regarding Corporate Governance

The disclosure - a “Statement of Corporate Governance Practice” —
shall be made in the Company’s Board of Directors report. Such
disclosure shall be relatively brief but shall address at least the
following points:

Board of Directors Report

According to the Companies Law, the Board of Directors is required
to prepare a report for the financial year of the Company indicating
the balance sheet, the statement of profits and losses, a report on the
Company's operations and financial position and on the method it
proposes to distribute the net profit. The said report and documents
must be signed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors, and
copies thereof shall be placed at the disposal of the shareholders at
the Company's head office before the date set for the Annual

General Meeting.

The annual report of the Board shall contain at least the

following:

a. The composition of the Board and classification of each of
its members as an Executive Director, a Non-Executive
Director or an Independent Director.

b. Description of Board Committees, their functions, names of
their members and chairs of the committees as well as the
number of meetings of the committees.

c. Detailed remunerations and compensations paid for Board
members (Directors) and five senior executives.

d. Any punishment, penalties or measures taken against
Nayifat by any regulatory, supervisory or judicial authority.

e. Names of any joint stock company or companies in which
the Company Board of Directors’ member acts as a member
of its Board of Directors.

f.  Results of the annual audit on the effectiveness of the
internal control procedures of the company.

g.  The provisions of CMA Corporate Governance Regulations,
which the Company has not implemented, the reasons for
not doing so and the likely time period for it to implement

those provisions.
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h.

Significant plans and decisions, such as corporate
restructuring, business expansion and discontinuance of
operations, shall be outlined along with future prospects of
the Company and any risks facing the Company.

A description of the principal activities of the Company. If
two or more activities are described, a statement must be
included giving for each activity the turnover and
contribution to trading results attributable to the Company.
A summary, in the form of a table or a chart, of the assets
and liabilities of Nayifat and of Nayifat's business results
for the last five financial years or from incorporation,
whichever is shorter.

A geographical analysis of the Nayifat's consolidated
turnover and of the consolidated turnover of its
subsidiaries (if any) outside the Kingdom.

An explanation for any material differences between the
operating results of the year and the operating results of the
previous year or any announced forecast made by the
Company.

An explanation for any departure from the accounting
standards issued by SOCPA & IFRS.

The name of every subsidiary, its main business, its
principal country of operation and its country of
incorporation.

The particulars of the issued shares and debt instruments
of every subsidiary.

A description of Nayifat's dividend policy.

A description of any interest, options, and subscription
rights of the Nayifat's Directors, senior executives and their
spouses and minor children in the shares or debt
instruments of Nayifat or any of its subsidiaries, together
with any change to such interest and rights during the last
financial year.

Information relating to any borrowings of the Company
(whether repayable on demand or otherwise), and a
statement of the aggregate indebtedness of Nayifat and its
group together with any amounts paid by the Nayifat as a

repayment of loans during the year. In case there are no
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loans outstanding for Nayifat, it must provide an
appropriate statement.
Adescription of the classes and numbers of any convertible
debt instruments, options, warrants or similar rights issued
or granted by Nayifat during the financial year, together
with the consideration received by Nayifat.
A description of any conversion or subscription rights
under any convertible debt instruments, options, warrants
or similar rights issued or granted by Nayifat. The number
of meetings of the Board of Directors held during the last
financial year and the attendance record of each meeting.
Information relating to any contract to which Nayifat is
party and in which a Director of Nayifat, the CEO, the CFO
or any associate is or was materially interested, or if there
are no such contracts, Nayifat must submit an appropriate
statement. A description of any arrangements or
agreement under which a Director or a senior executive of
Nayifat has waived any emolument or compensation.
A description of any arrangements or agreement under
which a Shareholder of Nayifat has waived any rights to
dividends. A statement of the amount of any outstanding
statutory payment on account of any Zakat, taxes, duties or
other charges with a brief description and the reasons
thereof. A statement as to the value of any investments
made or any other reserves set up for the benefit of the
employees of Nayifat;
Statements that:
i. proper books of account have been maintained;
ii. the system of internal control is sound in design and
has been effectively implemented;
iii. there are no significant doubts concerning Nayifat's
ability to continue as a going concern;

If any of the statements above cannot be made, the report
must contain a statement clarifying the reasons thereof;
If the external auditors’ report on the relevant annual
accounts is qualified, and the Authority requires additional
information, the Directors report must include such

information as has been provided to the Authority; and

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL

O sy Jzas sl AW 2l I sudacd)
.&Lu_?-l
@illy aud (o, layldl 65 e (b 2alaill cilaglall
2l ol gdainll (a0 1 851581 (udzme gune 448 050
g ol «Grasr (S Lerge 0 of Lazge el ol o1 JU
foends lislll e oy c3giall s Jie 3929 ake All>
wrger JLL Bl of wluss ¥ caimy clio Ol
9 sl 6l oo Sl § S sduais J9sun 91 uoe
& pabus Lozgor JLly oldlas) of wlasys ¥ Caiog
o Barty Olas el 7 LyT @ s> gl e il
il 91 8IS Al wlus e Aamiune Anallss cilegde
S Glwly 3250 caimg pa 53T canlias ol pgu ol
@ &>l alblasl @ o abldiel ¢ b olos
il ilsge wllial aglas]
U

Ao aiblus 50y Llasdl @l wgas (1
POYNPO PO WES U ERERN IRUERN NI
Slaylill 808 Jo> S IoSa 3929 pay duas
Byaiun SLaAIS Hlyerad e
Sz o e oMel bl e éi Jee pdad Al> &
S Cleal mings Ol (e ayanll
Lyl llundl e bl nadall a5 o 13]
cmsd Adls] cleglas Al codbhg Slage alall @l
oo Aasllall culaglall olls 51591 yubowe 10,21 ARG ]
gl

(e

(z

Shlusd) GiBus il 8y95as B)lo¥l ulza (ol 13]

cxed Adle Adle Olgiw EM cLasdsl b cnusylid)
sda olwly oladl 1 ole de joaill iy O
Ao gl

O84Sy i o (17) 800 (e (o) 8,82l T.E_ég -

oladl aS,ad) de e ASW Bl A e 8oLl
pIES (Rgas Slaog 8l0¥ udxo elacl ;.LML ELIwAL
E)UOA}T Byl ¥ ke 893 £y i)l (0 o ‘alj Las

(32 - 68)

www.nayifat.com

[



SIS Y &
NayiFat

z. If the Board recommends that the external auditors should
be changed before the elapse of three consecutive financial
years, the report must contain a statement to that effectand
the reasons for such recommendation.

aa. In line with CMA Corporate Governance Regulations
Paragraph (d) of Article 17, the Company shall notify the
CMA of the names of the Board members and description
of their memberships within five business days from the
commencement date of the Board term or from the date of
their appointment, whichever is shorter, as well as any
changes that may affect their membership within five
business days from the occurrence of such changes.

Other Board Responsibilities

Audit Committee

The Board is responsible for ensuring the efficiency and
effectiveness for the control and financial reports and for
safeguarding the assets of the Company. The Board shall:

® provide all that is required from them in order to facilitate
the work of the Audit Committee, internal audit
department and compliance control department;

® Ensure that the Company has in place an appropriate
organizational structure, internal policies, and regulations
that must be periodically reviewed, and the system and
methodology for reporting within the Company on the
different Issues that fall within the remit of the Audit
Committee;

® formulate the responsibilities and functions of the Audit
Committee and incorporate them in the minutes of the
Board meetings including the authority to investigate any
activity within its terms of reference and have access to any
info;

® follow up the Audit Committee's work;

® ensure that it performs its assigned responsibilities and
duties;

® discussrelevantissues with the Audit Committee, including

the reports and findings of the Audit Committee;
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® ensure that the Audit Committee keeps up-to-date with

developments in accounting standards;

® Ensure that the Audit Committee plays an oversight and
supervisory role and does not exercise executive functions
or make administrative decisions.
Risk Management
The Company willimplement Risk Management Policy approved by
the Board, which details the Company's risk management
framework and provides oversight on senior management's
activities in the managing of operational, investment, legal,

reputation and other risks of the Company.

Statutory Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is responsible for preparing the annual report
and financial statements of the company in accordance with the
regulatory requirements by the various regulatory authorities in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, such as the Capital Market Authority, the
Saudi Central Bank and the Ministry of Commerce, and the company
must keep accounting records and supporting documents to clarify
its business, contracts and financial statements at the company's
head office, and the company's financial statements must be
prepared at the end of each financial year in accordance with the
accounting standards adopted in the Kingdom, and these

statements are filed in accordance with regulatory requirements.

Internal Audit

The Board, through its Audit Committee will ensure that the
Company’s internal audit function is able to provide objective and
independentadvice to the Company’s senior management as well as
to the Board itself. This advice will seek covering the Company's
management of business risk, validation of the design and operation
of its controls, and adherence to policies and procedures and codes
of conduct.

Internal Control Framework

The Company should operate a system of internal control that is
effective in ensuring compliance with laws and regulations and

internal policies and procedures.
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External Audit

The Company shall entrust the task of auditing its annual accounts
to an independent, competent, experienced and qualified auditor to
prepare an objective and independent report to the Board of
Directors and shareholders showing whether the Company's
financial statements clearly and fairly reflect the Company's
financial position and performance in material respects.

The Ordinary General Assembly shall appoint the Company's
auditor upon the nomination of the Board of Directors, taking into
account the following:

1) The nomination shall be based on the recommendation of the
Audit Committee.

2) To be licensed and meet the conditions prescribed by the
competent authority.

3) His interests should not conflict with the interests of the company.
4) The number of candidates should not be less than two reviewers.
The auditor shall exercise the duties of care and honesty to the
Company, inform the Authority in the event that the Board of
Directors does not take appropriate action on the suspicious matters
raised by him, and shall request the Board of Directors to convene
the Ordinary General Assembly if the Board does not facilitate its
work. He shall be liable for compensating the damage suffered by
the company, shareholders or third parties due to errors made by
him in the performance of his work, and if there are several auditors

and they participate in the error, they shall be jointly liable.

Ethical Conduct

The Company seeks to set forth the principles associated with its
policy regarding a code of ethics for members of the Board of
Directors and all employees and further to develop position
statements in support of a culture of ethical conduct within the
Company.

It is the policy of the Board of Directors and all employees to
demonstrate the highest level of ethical behavior for them and
others associated with the Company pursuant to its Code of Ethics

and Business Conduct.
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Nayifat Corporate Social Responsibility policy intends to support
economic development that positively impacts the society.
Encourage company's action towards social responsibility programs
for supporting country's development and needy people.

® Saudization Program

Nayifat continuously provides career opportunities for
young nationals and support Saudization program.
Saudization is one of the most important issues affecting
the labor market; it is directly linked to economic growth
and sustainable development. In addition, Nayifat provides
career opportunities for female employees, the rate of
female employees growing on yearly basis. HR will

maintain saudizaton ratio as per SAMA policy.
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Guidelines on processing deceased and disabled cases
This process aims describing the guiding steps while
processing deceased and disabled cases.

Representative (Relative/Heir/Attorney-in-Fact) should
submit documentary requirements for deceased/disabled
customers.

The required documents may vary case by case however
minimum three documents should be submitted out five

documents given below based on the merits of the cases.
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a. Death certificate | Disabled certificate showing

disability percentage.

b. Medical report stating the cause of
death/disabled.
c. ClientID

d. Legal heirs'letter
e. Police report in case of accident causing
death/disabled.

Original documents with photocopies should be submitted
to the Branch. Customer service staff should verify and
stamp photocopies with "Verified against Original" and
signs along with the representative.
Collection Department collects information about the
customers due and unpaid amounts and necessary
information and reporting to the committee members to
seek appropriate decision.
Guidelines on processing customers who falls under
legal proceedings
Customer falls under legal proceedings should submit
supporting documents to prove subject cases. In case
customer falls under insolvency court order should be
produced. Original documents with photocopies should be
submitted to the Branch. Customer service staff should
verify and stamp photocopies with "Verified against
Original” and signs along with the representative. Initial
review will be conducted by Collection Department, upon
completion subject cases will be forwarded to CSR
Committee. Appropriate decision will be taken by CSR

committee upon completion of the final review.
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SECTION THREE: NAYIFAT BOARD COMMITTEES

3.1. Criteria for forming committees

The Board shall form specialised committees as follows:

As may be needed depending on the Company’s circumstances

in order to enable it to effectively perform its duties.

the formation of the committees shall be made in accordance
with general procedures developed by the Board, which shall
determine the duties, duration and powers of each committee,
and the manner in which the Board monitors the activities of
each committee. The committee shall inform the Board of its
findings or decisions with complete transparency. The Board
shall regularly follow up the activities of such committees to
ensure the performance of the duties delegated to them.

each committee shall be responsible before the Board for its
activities, this shall not relief the Board of its responsibility for
such activities, duties and powers that it has delegated to such
committee.

the number of members of a committee shall not be less than
three or more than five.

the chairmen or whom they delegate of each committee
members, shall attend the General Assembly Meetings and
answer any questions raised by the shareholders.

the Company shall provide SAMA and CMA with the names of
the members and the types of their memberships in such
Board's committees within five (5) days of their appointment,
and shall notify the Authority of any changes thereto within five
(5) days of the date of such changes.

Each committee shall assess the matters that fall within its
authority or those referred to it by the Board and shall
communicate its recommendations to the Board to issue
decisions in connection therewith. The committees shall take
decisions in regards to these matters if delegated by the Board.
The committees may seek assistance from any experts or
specialists, whether internal or external, within the scope of its
powers. This shall be included in the minutes of the committee
meeting; the minutes states the name of the expert and his

relation to the Company or its Executive Management.
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The Board of Directors has formed 7 committees to expand the
scope of its work in specialized areas and has granted it the
necessary powers to perform its work and monitor its
performance, as follow: (Executive Committee - Strategic
Committee - Nomination and Remuneration Committee -
Credit Committee - Risk Committee - Sharia Committee - Assets
and Liability Committee), The Audit Committee was formed by
a decision of the Ordinary General Assembly of the company.

Each committee shall have a Charter clarifying the rules and
procedures of its work, its tasks and rules for selecting its
members, the method of nominating them, the duration of their
membership, their remuneration, and the mechanism for
appointing its members temporarily in the event of a vacancy in

one of the committee's seats.
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4. SECTION 4:RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

4.1. General Rights

General provisions

AShareholdershould be entitled to all rights attached to their shares,

in particular, the right to a share of the distributable profits, the right

to a share of the company’s assets upon liquidation; the right to
attend the General Assembly and participate in deliberations and
vote on relevant decisions; the right of disposition with respect to
shares; the right to supervise the Board of Directors activities, and
file responsibility claims against board members; the right to inquire
and have access to information without prejudice to the company’s
interests and in a manner that does not contradict the Capital Market

Law and the Implementing Rules.

As per CMA’s Corporate Governance Regulations, the Company in

its Bylaws should specify the procedures and precautions that are

necessary for the shareholders’ exercise of all their lawful rights.

Fair Treatment of Shareholders

a. The Board is obliged to seek shareholders' rights protection to
ensure fairness and equality among them.

b. The Board and the Executive Management of the Company is
obliged not to discriminate among shareholders who own the
same class of shares nor prevent them from accessing any of
their rights.

c. The Company shall specify initsinternal policies the procedures
that are necessary to guarantee that all shareholders exercise
their rights.

Rights related to shares

All rights related to shares shall be guaranteed to the

shareholder, and particularly the following:

a. to obtain his/her portion of the net profits which are to be
distributed in cash or through the issuance of shares;

b. to obtain his/her share of the Company’s assets upon
liquidation;

c. to attend the General or Special Shareholders Assemblies, take
partin their deliberations and vote on their decisions;

d. to dispose of his/her shares in accordance with the provisions
of the Companies Law, The Capital Market Law and their

implementing regulations;
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e. toenquireand requestviewing the books and documents of the
Company, including the data and information related to the
activities of the Company and its operational and investment
strategy without prejudice to the interests of the Company or
breach of the Companies Law and the Capital Market Law and
theirimplementing regulations;

f.  to monitor the performance of the Company and the activities
of the Board;

g. to hold Board members accountable, to file liability lawsuits
against them and appeal for nullification of the resolutions of
the General and Special Shareholders Assemblies in accordance
with the conditions and restrictions provided in the Companies
Law and the bylaws of the Company;

h. preemptive rights to subscribe for new shares issued in
exchange for cash unless otherwise specified in the Company’s
bylaws or when the Extraordinary General Assembly suspends
the pre-emptive rights are per Article (14) of the Company's
Law.

i.  torecord his/her name in the Company’s shareholders register;

j. to request to view a copy of the Company’s articles of
association and bylaws unless the Company publishes them on
its website;

Shareholder access to information

a. The Board shall make available to the shareholder complete,
clear, accurate and non-misleading information to enable
him/her to properly exercise his/her rights. Such information
shall be provided at the proper times and shall be updated
regularly.

b. The method used to provide information to the shareholders
shall be clear and detailed and shall include a list of the
Company's information that the shareholders may obtain. This
information shall be made available to all shareholders of the
same class.

c. The Company shall use the most effective methods in
communicating with shareholders and shall not discriminate

among shareholders in respect of providing information.
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Communicating with Shareholders

a. The Board shall ensure communication between the Company
and the shareholders based on the common understanding of
the strategic objectives and interests of the Company.

b. The chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer shall
inform the remaining Board members of the opinions of the
shareholders and discuss these opinions with them.

¢. Noshareholder may intervene in the operations of the Board or
the work of the Executive Management of the Company unless
he/she is a member of its Board or its management team; or
unless his/her intervention is through the Ordinary General
Assembly according to its powers or within the limits and

situations permitted by the Board.

Electing the Board Members

a. Upon calling for the General Assembly, the Company shall
announce on the Saudi Exchange “TADAWUL” information
about the nominees for the membership of the Board which
shallinclude the nominees' experience, qualifications, skills and
their previous and current jobs and memberships. The
Company shall make a copy of the mentioned information
available in the Company's head office and its website.

b. Cumulative voting shall be used in electing the Board, in which
it is not allowed to use the voting right of a single share more
than once.

c. Voting in the General Assembly shall be confined to the Board
nominees whose information has been announced as per
paragraph (a).

Distribution of Dividends

a. The Company’s bylaws shall prescribe the percentage of the net
profits to be distributed to the shareholders after setting aside
the reserves.

b. The Board shall establish a clear policy for the distribution of
dividends to achieve the interests of the shareholders and the
Company as per the Company's bylaw.

c. Theshareholder is entitled to receive his/her share of dividends
as per the decision of the General Assembly in respect of the

distribution of dividends to shareholders or the Board
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resolution on distributing interim dividends. The resolution
shall specify the record date and the distribution date provided
that the resolution shall be executed as per the Regulatory Rules
and Procedures issued pursuant to the Companies Law related
to Listed Joint Stock Companies

d. The announcement and distribution of dividends shall be in

accordance with the laws and regulations.

4.2. Rights Related to the Meeting of the General Assembly
General Shareholders Assemblies of the Company are competent in
all of its affairs. A duly-constituted General Assembly represents all
shareholders in exercising their powers in respect of the Company.

The General Assembly shall exercise its role in accordance with the

provisions of the Companies Law and Its Implementing Regulations

andand the relevant regulations issued by the regulatory authorities
and the Company's bylaws.

Authority

The following issues fall within the authority of the General

Assembly and should be decided upon by a majority vote of

shareholders participating in General Assembly:

a. The election and dismissal of Board members;

b. The ratification of election & dismissal of AC members based on
General Assembly;

c. The approval of the remuneration for Board members;

d. Uponrecommendation of the Board of Directors, issue rules for
appointing the members of the Audit Committee and define the
term of their office and the procedure to be followed by the
Committee.

e. Thedelegation of the authority of the Director to a manager not
a member of the Board;

f.  Theapproval of the annual reports, annual financial statements,
including balance sheet, profit and loss statements, statement
of cash-flows, and notes to the financial statements, as well as
the distribution of profits and losses based on the results of the
fiscal year;

g.  The declaration and payment of dividends based on the results
of the fiscal year;

h. Predetermined approval by the GA for interim dividends for
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next year based upon meeting targets;

i.  The election of the External Auditors and approval of their fees;

j- Approval of procedures for conducting the General Assembly;

k. The approval of the reimbursement of extraordinary or unusual
items;

I.  The approval of extraordinary transactions that are subject to
the approval of the Board of Directors in cases where the Board
failed to unanimously approve the transaction and transferred
the authority for its approval to the General Assembly;

m. Requesting an extraordinary inspection of the financial and
economic activities of the Company.

n. Any other issue stipulated by law or the Bylaws.

o. Approval of related party transactions.

p. Formation of an Audit Committee, including the charter for the
Audit Committee.

Announcement of General Assembly

In line with Article 13 of the CMA Corporate Governance

Regulations the date, place and agenda of the General Assembly

shall be announced at least 21 days prior to the date thereof; the

invitation shall be published on the website of the Exchange, the

Company's website and The Company may invite the General and

Special Shareholders’ Assemblies to convene using methods of

contemporary technologies.

The Ordinary or Annual General Assembly

This is the General Assembly of shareholders that is held on an

annual basis. It is called the “Ordinary” General Assembly or the

“Annual” General Assembly. In this General Assembly, the

shareholders review the Board’s annual report and discuss the

Annual Financial Statements. Once the Financial Statements are

approved and the dividend, if any has been declared, the General

Assembly may choose to discharge the directors, the Board

Committee members and the external auditors. In addition, it may

also decide if necessary, whether the members of the Board and the

external auditors are appointed or reappointed. Other points may

also be included in the agenda for discussion or approval.
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The Extraordinary General Assembly

An Extraordinary General Assembly must be called by the Board

when the Board wishes to ask the Company’s shareholders to

approve decisions related to:

d.

Amending the Company’s bylaws, except for amendments
which are deemed null and void pursuant to the provisions of
the Companies Law;

Increasing the Company’s share capital in accordance with the
situations provided by the Companies Law and lts
Implementing Regulations;

Decreasing the Company’s share capital if it exceeds the
Company’s needs or in the event the Company incurs financial
losses, in accordance with the situations provided by the
Companies Law and Its Implementing Regulations;

Resolving to form a consensual reserve for the Company as
provided for in its bylaws to be set aside for a specific purpose,
and the disposal thereof;

Resolving to maintain or liquidate the Company before the end
of the term specified in its bylaws;

Approving the Company's shares buy-back;

Issuing preferred shares or approving their buying, or
converting ordinary shares into preferred shares or converting
preferred shares into ordinary shares as per the Company's
bylaws and the Regulatory Rules and Procedures issued
pursuant to the Companies Law related to Listed Joint Stock
Companies;

Issuing debt instruments or financing deeds convertible into
shares, and stating the maximum number of shares that may be
issued against these instruments or deeds;

Allocate Shares that are issued upon the capital increase or part
of them for the employees of the Company, and its affiliates or
some of them, or any of them;

Suspending preemptive rights of shareholders in subscribing
for the capital increase in exchange for cash or giving priority to

non-shareholders in cases as deemed in the interest of the

Company if so is provided for in the Company’s bylaws.
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Shareholders' Assembly

d.

The General Assembly of Shareholders is the supreme
corporate body of the Company. The General Assembly of
Shareholders is a special event for shareholders. It provides
them with an opportunity to participate directly in decision-
making by voting on proposed resolutions, regardless of the
number of the Company shares they own. The Company is
aware of how important the General Assembly of Shareholders
is and encourages all of its shareholders to fully exercise their
rights at its Assembly through exercising the voting rights.
The General Assembly holds an annual meeting every year. This
meeting is called the Annual Meeting of the General Assembly.
The Annual General Assembly gives the Board of Directors the
opportunity to discharge their duties regarding matters that
need to be decided at the General Assembly level by law or by
the Bylaws, or place matters before the General Assembly for its
decision.
®  The Annual Meeting of General Assembly must be held
annually and at least within the six months following the
end of the Company’s financial year; upon the request of
the Board of Directors.
® All Meetings of the General Assembly other than the
Annual Meeting of General Assembly should be held as
Extraordinary Meeting of the General Assembly.
®  The date, place and agenda of the General Assembly shall
be announced at least 21 days prior to the date thereof; the
invitation shall be published on the website of the
Exchange, the Company's website and in a daily newspaper
distributed in the province where the Company's head
office is located. The Company may invite the General and
Special Shareholders' Assemblies to convene using
methods of contemporary technologies.
® Nayifat will make arrangements to facilitate the
participation of the greatest number of shareholders,
including, determination of the appropriate time and place
of the meeting. The Company should provide the

shareholders the opportunity to vote in the General
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Assembly and should inform the shareholders about the
rules governing the meetings and voting procedures.

The General Assembly should convene upon a request of
the Board of Directors. The Board should invite a General
Assembly to convene pursuant to a request of the external
auditors or the Audit Committee or a number of
shareholders whose shareholdings represent at least 5% of
the equity share capital. The external auditor may invite the
assembly to convene if the Board does not invite the
assembly within thirty days from the date of the external
auditor’s request.

In preparing the Annual Meeting of the General Assembly’s
agenda, the Board of Directors should take into
consideration matters General Assembly require to be
listed in that agenda; shareholders holding not less than 5%
of the company’s shares are entitled to add one or more
items to the agenda upon its preparation.

Shareholders should be entitled to discuss matters listed in
the agenda of the General Assembly and raise relevant
questions to the board members and to the external
auditors, whether these are covered in the agenda or not.
The Board of Directors or the external auditors should
answer the questions raised by shareholders in a manner
that does not prejudice the company’s interest.

Matters presented to the General Assembly should be
accompanied by sufficient information to enable
shareholders to make decisions.

Shareholders should be enabled to peruse the minutes of
the General Assembly; the company should provide the

regulators with a copy of those minutes within 10 days of

the convening date of any such meeting.

Participating in the General Assembly of Shareholders

Shareholders can participate in the General Assembly
either by participating in person or through proxy.

Participating in person; In order to attend an Assembly in
person, the shareholder must hold shares of the Company
which must be registered in the Register of Shareholders on

the date the company issues the notice of the meeting.
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Participating through Proxy a shareholder may participate
and vote in the General Assembly through proxy, i.e. having
another person attend and vote on the shareholder's
behalf. In order to attend by proxy, the shareholder needs
to issue a proxy to another shareholder or any person, other
than a board member, member of management, or an
employee of the Company. A single proxy holder cannot
hold proxies for more than 5% of the Company’s shares
unless they are holding proxy for a group of related
companies or one family or its members.

The name of the person attending and identification /
passport number must be written on the proxy form and
the proxy must contain information specifying the meeting
the proxy-holder will attend on behalf of the shareholder.
A shareholder may indicate his voting instructions on the
proxy form. He may indicate whom he wants to vote for,
against or to abstain from each agenda item which will be
voted on during the Assembly.

If the shareholder does not fill out the boxes provided to
indicate his preference and send in a blank proxy form, the
Company will consider as if no vote has been cast by that

shareholder.

Submission of Information to Shareholders

The following information and documents should be made

available to shareholders prior to the Annual General Assembly

Meeting:

a. Thereport of the Board of Directors to shareholders;

b. The annual financial statements, including the balance
sheet, profit and loss statement, statement of cash flows,
and notes to the financial statements;

c. Thereport of the External Auditors;

d. Information on proposed candidates for the position of the

Director;
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e. The draft of amendments to the Charter, if any;

f.  The draft of the new version of the Charter, if any;

g. Drafts of any internal documents of the Company if same
have been submitted for approval from the General
Assembly;

h. The recommendations of the Board on the distribution of
profits, including the amount of dividends and the
procedure for their payment, and on the distribution of
losses of the Company based on the results of the fiscal
year;

i.  Remuneration of the Board members

j.  Information regarding the position of the Board of
Directors and any dissenting opinions of directors on each
agenda item;

k. Any other information required by the Law, CMA, SAMA
and internal documents of the Company.

If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly Meeting includes

the election of the Board of Directors and the Audit Committee

members, individual Director and the approval of the External

Auditors, information as to the existence of the written consent

of the candidates should also be provided to shareholders.

If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly Meeting includes

items that can trigger redemption rights, the following

information and documents should be made available for
shareholders during the preparation for the General Assembly:

a. The report of the Independent Appraiser on the market
value of shares of the Company, the redemption of which
can be requested;

b. Information regarding the value of the net assets of the
Company; and

c.  The minutes (or an excerpt from the minutes) of the Board
of Directors’ meeting that determined the redemption price
for shares and indicated that redemption price.

If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly Meeting includes

the reorganization of the Company, the following information

and documents should be made available for shareholders
during the preparation for the Annual General Assembly

Meeting
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a. The basis or grounds for the terms and procedures of the
reorganization that is contained in the decision on the
consolidation, ~ merger,  split-up,  divestiture, or

transformation, or in the contract on merger or
consolidation thatis approved by the relevant Board;

b. The annual reports and the financial statements of all
companies involved in the reorganization for the last three
fiscal years, or for all completed fiscal years if the Company
was established less than three years ago; and

c. Theyear-to-date financial statements up to the quarter that
precedes the date of the General Assembly.

®  Information and materials that will be submitted to the persons
entitled to participate in Annual General Assembly Meeting will
also be made available at the headquarters of the Company to
facilitate access to and familiarization of the same. Shareholders
also reserve the right, having provided prior written notice, to
inspect the books and constitutional documents of the
Company at the head office.

® If the agenda of the Annual General Assembly includes the
election of members to the Board of Directors or the proposed
External Auditors of the Company, the candidates should be
presentwhen the General Assembly discusses this issue with the
exception of the external auditors when their election is being
discussed.

Applicability of General Assembly resolution:

The resolution of the general assembly of a joint stock company shall

be effective from the date of its issuance, except in cases where the

articles of association, the company's articles of association, or the
resolution issued stipulate that it shall be effective at another time or
when certain conditions are met.

Submission of Information to CMA

The Company shall announce to the public the results of a General

Assembly meeting immediately following its conclusion and shall

grant the shareholders an access to the minutes of the General

Assembly meeting; and the Company shall provide the Authority

with a copy of such minutes within (10) days of the date of any such

meeting.
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In line with Paragraph (a) of Article 8 CMA Corporate Governance
Regulations, upon calling for the General Assembly, the Company
shall announce on the Exchange’s Website information about the
nominees for the membership of the Board.

In accordance with Article 65 of CMA Corporate Governance

shall

Regulations, the Company publish  the nomination
announcement on the websites of the Company and the Exchange
to invite persons wishing to be nominated to the membership of the
Board and The nomination shall remain open for a period of at least
one month from the date of the announcement.

5. SECTION Five: CODE OF ETHICS AND BUSINESS CONDUCT

5.1. Honesty and Integrity

The success of the Company's business is dependent on the honesty,
integrity and confidence earned from its employees, customers, and
shareholders. The Company gains credibility by adhering to its
commitments, displaying honesty and integrity and achieving
company goals solely through honorable conduct. The Company
shall lead by example and will ultimately be judged on its actions.
Employees should ask whether particular actions will build trust and
credibility for the Company and whether such action will help create
aworking environment in which the Company can succeed over the
long term. The Board Members, Senior Managers, and employees
shall strive to build a reputation for the Company of honor and
integrity.

The General Assembly of Shareholders shall be notified of any
transactions with any related company in which a Board Member,
committee member, or Senior Manager has any interest. The
disclosure to the General Assembly shall be accompanied by areport
from an external auditor regarding the conflict of interest.

In addition, the Chairman shall provide the General Assembly of
Shareholders with details of contracts in which Board Members or
Senior Management or their Related Parties have an interest,

including the line of business, size and losses (if any).

5.2. Disclosure Policy
The Company shall not announce any anticipated actions that

require SAMA's prior approval or non-objection, before obtaining
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the actual approval or non- objection, taking in consideration all
related laws and regulations.

Any disclosure to the public and the regulatory authorities shall be
clear, fair, and not misleading. The Company is under obligation to
ensure that it promptly discloses to the public and the regulatory
authorities any material developments which are not public
knowledge and which may have an effect on the assets and liabilities
or financial position or on the general course of business of the
Company or its subsidiaries, which lead to movements in the price
of its shares, or significantly affects the Company's ability to meet its
commitments in respect of debt instruments.

In determining whether a development is material, the Company
shall assess whether any investor would likely take into
consideration the development when making investment decisions
regarding the Company's shares.

The Company will make certain that all disclosures made in financial
reports and public documents are full, fair, accurate, timely and
understandable. This obligation applies to all employees with any
responsibility for the preparation for such reports, including
drafting; reviewing and signing or certifying the information
contained therein, as well as to Senior Management and Board and
Committee members. There is no excuse for misrepresentingfacts or
falsifying records, which shall not be tolerated for any reason
whatsoever.

Employees should inform Senior Management and the Compliance
and Audit departments if they learn thatany informationin any filing
or public communication was untrue or misleading at the time it was
made or if subsequent information would affect a similar future
filing or public communication.

The Company will also not selectively disclose (whether in one-on-
one or small discussions, meetings, presentations, proposals or
otherwise) any material non- public information with respect to the
Company, its securities, business operations, plans, financial
condition, results of operations or any development plan. The
Company shall be particularly vigilant when making presentations
or proposals to customers to ensure that our presentations do not

contain material non-public information.
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All communications shall be made in compliance with SAMA's
Regulations and the CMA's Disclosure Rules, the Listing Rules, and
other relevant laws.

The Company ensures that all announcements are required to be
prepared and endorsed by the Management and approved by

Executive Committee Chairman (EC).

5.3. Accountability

The Board, its committees, Senior Management and Employees are
responsible for knowing and adhering to the values and standards
set forth in this Code of Ethics and the Corporate Governance
Manual, and for raising questions if they are uncertain about
Company policy. The Senior Management shall be accountable to
the Board while the Board shall be accountable to the Company's
Shareholders and SAMA.

The Company takes the standards set forth in the Code seriously,
and violations are cause for disciplinary action up to and including
termination of employment or removal from the Board or its
committees. Concerns whether the Company's standards are being
met or awareness of violations of the Code of Corporate Governance
Manual must be raised to the Compliance and Internal Audit

department or the Audit Committee.

5.4. Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Company’s commitment to integrity begins with complying
with laws, rules and regulations in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia.
Directors, executives and employees must have an understanding of
the company policies, laws, rules and regulations that apply to their
specific roles. In the event of uncertainty whether a contemplated
action is permitted by law or the Company's policy, advice and
guidance should be sought from the Legal and Compliance
departments. The Board, Senior Management, and employees are
responsible for preventing violations of law and for speaking up if
they discover or know of any possible violations.

The Company shall comply with all laws, regulations, directives, and
instructions issued by SAMA, the CMA, and any other regulations

applicable in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia, including the Corporate
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Governance Regulation, the Listing Rules, and the Companies

Regulations among others.

5.5. Confidential and Proprietary Information

Integral to the Company’s business success is our protection of
confidential Company information, as well as non-public
information entrusted to us by employees, customers and other
business partners. Confidential and proprietary information
includes such things as pricing and financial data, customer
names/addresses, and financial information and/or non-public
information about other companies, including current or potential
supplier and vendors. The Company will not disclose confidential
and non-public information without a valid business purpose and
proper authorization.

Itis equally important that the Company respects the property rights
of others. The Company will not acquire or seek to acquire improper
means of a competitor’s trade secrets or other proprietary or
confidential information. The Company will not engage in

unauthorized use, copying, distribution or alteration of software or

other intellectual property.

5.6. Protection of Company's Assets

Company resources, including time, material, equipment and
information, are provided exclusively for business only. Board
Members, Senior Managers, Employees and those who represent
the Company are trusted to behave responsibly and use good
judgment to conserve company resources. Managers are
responsible for the resources assigned to their departments and are
empowered to resolve issues concerning their proper use.
Generally, Company equipment such as computers, copiers and fax
machines shall not be used in the conduct of an outside business or
in support of any religious, political or other outside daily activity,
except for company-requested support to non-profit organizations
or other functions approved by the management. Solicitation of
contributions or distribution of non-work related materials during
work hours is prohibited.

In order to protect the interests and assets of the Company and our

employees, the Company reserves the right to monitor or review all
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data and information contained on an employee’s company-issued
computer or electronic device, the use of the Internet or the
Company’s intranet. We will not tolerate the use of company
resources to create, access, store, print, solicit or send any materials
that are harassing, threatening, abusive, sexually explicit or
otherwise offensive or inappropriate.

Sale of company assets

The Board of Directors is required to obtain the approval of the
General Assembly when selling the company's assets exceeding the
value of (fifty percent) of the value of its total assets, whether the sale
was made through one transaction or several deals, in which case
the transaction that leads to exceeding (fifty percent) of the value of
the assets is considered the transaction that requires the approval of
the General Assembly, and this percentage is calculated from the
date of the first transaction made during the previous twelve
months. The competent authority may exempt certain acts and acts

from the provisions of this Article.

5.7. FairDealing

Members of the Board and its committees, Senior Managers, and
employees shall deal fairly with the Company's customers, suppliers,
competitors, independent auditors, Shareholders, and one another
and shall not take unfair advantage of anyone through
manipulation, concealment, abuse of privileged information,
misrepresentation of material facts, or any other unfair dealing or
practice.

The work environment shall be an environment where everyone is
treated with dignity and respect. The Company is committed to
creating such an environment to bring out the full potential of each
person, which, in turn, contributes directly to its business success.
The Company is an equal employment employer and is committed
to providing a workplace that is free of discrimination of all types
from abusive, offensive or harassing behavior. Any employee who
feels harassed or discriminated against should report the incident to
his or her manager, human resources, or the Audit department.

5.8. Guidelines of Ethical Conduct

At times, Senior Management and employees may be faced with

decisions they would rather not have to make and issues they would
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prefer to avoid. Senior Management and employees of the Company
must exercise all reasonable care in taking decisions with the
confidence that the Company is committed to acting in an ethical
and fair manner at all times. In doing so, this may require the
Company to comply with more than the minimum requirements of
the law.

While the Company's guidelines of ethical conduct cannot address
every issue or provide answers to every situation, it can define the
spirit in which the Company intends to do business and will act as
guidance on day-to-day affairs.

Senior Management has the added responsibility for demonstrating,
through their actions, the importance of the Code of Ethics and
Business Conduct. Ethical behavior is the product of clear and direct
communication of behavioral expectations set by the management
as an example.

Senior Management must be responsible for promptly addressing
ethical questions or concerns raised by employees and for taking the
appropriate steps to deal with such issues. Managers should not
consider employees’ ethics concerns as threats or challenges to their
authority, but rather as another encouraged form of business

communication.

5.9. Policy for Confidential Reporting (Whistle Blowing
Policy)

Every employee is a principal resource for the Company to detect
and prevent any unethical or unlawful business practices by any
employee(s), customer(s) or others. Such practices must be
communicated to the senior management. Concealment, avoidance
and showing nonchalant attitude towards any misconduct,
unethical and or unlawful business practice or activity, which an
employee may notice and understand, will complicate the problem
and may cause increased pecuniary and reputational damage to the
Company. Hence the Company expects the employees to raise their
concerns if appropriate, to their superiors or senior management.
The Company has the policy for all shareholders to raise ethical
concerns, evidence of misconduct, or violations in a confidential
manner and without the fear of retribution. Concerns may include

internal accounting controls and questionable accounting matters.
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A staff member may raise any of their concerns, suspicions or any
other claims of violations, which might jeopardize the interests of

the Company, by referring to the Company’s Whistle blower policy.

5.10.Conflicts of Interest

Dealing with Conflicts of Interest and Related Parties Transactions:

Without prejudice to the provisions of the Companies Law and Its
Implementing Regulations, conflicts of interest situations and
Related Parties transactions shall be dealt with in accordance with
the provisions of Chapter 6 of the CMA Corporate Governance

Regulations.

Conflicts of Interest Policy

The Board shall develop an explicit and written policy to deal with
actual and potential conflicts of interest situations which may affect
the performance of Board members, the Executive Management or
any other employees of the Company when dealing with the
Company or other Stakeholders. This policy shall include the

following in particular:

1) informing Board members, Substantial Shareholders, Senior
Executives and other employees of the Company of the importance
of avoiding situations that may lead to a conflict between their
interests and the interests of the Company, and dealing with them in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law and lts
Implementing Regulations.
2) Providing examples of conflicts of interest situations that are
relevant to the nature of the Company’s activity.

3) Clear procedures for disclosing conflicts of interest in the activities
that may lead to such conflicts and obtaining authorization or the
requisite approval.

4) The obligation to constantly disclose situations that may lead to
conflicts of interest or upon the occurrence of such conflicts.
5) The obligation to abstain from voting or taking part in decision
making when there is conflicts of interest.
6) Clear procedures when the Company contracts or enters into a

transaction with a Related Party, this shall include notifying the
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Authority and the public without any delay of that contract or
transaction if it equals to or exceeds 1% of the Company's total
revenues according to the last annual audited financial statements.
7) Procedures to be taken by the Board when discovering that such

policy is violated.

Avoiding Conflicts of Interest

a) A member of the Board shall:

Each member of the Board of Directors shall abide by the duties of
care and loyalty, including, in particular, the following:

1 - Exercise his duties with honesty and integrity and within the
limits of the prescribed powers, and to put the interests of the
company and promote its success over his personal interest, and not
to exploit his position to achieve private interests.

2. Take or vote on decisions independently

3 - Exerting care, attention, care and reasonable and expected skill

4 - Avoid cases of conflict of interest, and disclose any interest he has
directly or indirectly in the business and contracts made for the
company's account.

5 - Maintaining the confidentiality of information related to the
company and its activities and not disclosing it to anyone.

6 - Not to accept any benefit granted to him by others in relation to

his role in the company.

b) Conflict of Interest, Competition and Exploitation of Assets:
1. A member of the Board of Directors may not have any direct or
indirect interest in the business and contracts concluded for the
company's account, except with the authorization of the General
Assembly. (Except for works and contracts that are carried out
according to public competition, or that aim to meet personal needs
if they are carried out under the same conditions and conditions as
the company with the general dealers and contractors and were
within the company's usual activity)

2. A member of the Board of Directors may not participate in any
business that would compete with the company or compete with the
company in any of the branches of the activity it engages, except
with a license from the General Assembly.

3. A member of the Board of Directors may not exploit the

company's assets, information or investment opportunities offered
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to him as a member of its board of directors or offered to the
company to achieve his direct or indirect interest.

4- In the event that a member of its board of directors violates
paragraphs (1 and 2) of this Article, the company shall have the right
to claim before the competent judicial authority the annulment of
the contract, oblige him to pay any profit or benefit achieved for him

from this, and claim appropriate compensation.

C) Each Board member is prohibited from:

1) Voting on a decision taken by the Board or the General Assembly
with respect to transactions and contracts that are executed for the
Company's account, if he/she has a direct or indirect interest therein.
2) Misusing or benefitting, directly or indirectly, from any of the
Company’s assets, information or investment opportunities
presented to the Company or to him in his/her capacity asa member
of the Board. This includes investment opportunities which are
within the activities of the Company, or which the Company wishes
to make use of. Such prohibition shall extend to Board memberwho
resigns to, directly or indirectly, use investment opportunities that

the Company wishes to use, which came to his/her knowledge

during his/her membership in the Board.

Conflict of Interest Disclosure

1- Upon becoming aware of any interest he has, whether directly or
indirectly, in the business and contracts for the Company's account,
a member of the Board of Directors shall inform the Board thereof,
and such notification shall be recorded in the minutes of the Board
meeting at its meeting. Such a member may not participate in voting
onthe resolution issued in this regard in the Council and the General
Assemblies. The Board shall inform the General Assembly upon its
convening of the works and contracts in which the Board member
hasadirectorindirectinterest, and shall attach to the reporta special
report from the Company's auditor prepared in accordance with the
auditing standards adopted in the Kingdom.

2. If amember of the board fails to disclose his interest referred to in
paragraph 1 of this article, the company or any interested party may

claim before the competent judicial authority to annul the contract
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or oblige the member to pay any profit or benefit achieved for him
from this.

3. Liability for damages resulting from the works and contracts
referred to in paragraph 1 of this article shall be borne by the
member who has an interest in the work or contract, and by the
members of the board of directors when they default or neglect to
perform their obligations in violation of the provisions of that
paragraph or if it is proved that such works and contracts are unfair
orinvolve a conflict of interest and cause harm to shareholders.

4. Members of the Board of Directors opposed to the resolution shall
be exempted from liability if they expressly prove their objection in
the minutes of the meeting, and absence from attending the meeting
in which the resolution is issued shall not be considered a reason for
exemption from liability unless it is proved that the absent member
was not aware of the decision or was unable to object to it after

becoming aware of it.

Disclosure of Conflicts of Interest by the Nominee

A person who desires to nominate himself/herself for the
membership of the Board shall disclose to the Board or the General
Assembly any cases of conflicts of interest, including:

1) having direct or indirect interest in the contracts and businesses
entered into for the benefit of the Company in which he/she desires
to be nominated to the Board.

2) Engaging in business that may compete with the Company or any

of its activities.

Competing with the Company

Without prejudice to Articles (27, 71) of the Companies Law, and in
line with CMA regulations, if a member of the Board desires to
engage in a business that may compete with the Company or any of
its activities, the following shall be taken into account:

1) Notifying the Board of the competing businesses he/she desires
to engage in and recording such notification in the minutes of the
Board meeting.

2) The conflicted member shall abstain from voting on the related
decision

in the Board meeting and General Assemblies.

3) the chairman of the Board informing the Ordinary General
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Assembly, once convened, of the competing businesses that the
member of the Board is engaged in, after the Board assesses the
board member's competition with the company's business or if
he/she is in competition with one of the branch activities that it
conducts in accordance standards issued by the Ordinary General
Assembly upon a proposal from the Board and published on the
company’s website, provided that such businesses are assessed on
annual basis.

4) Obtaining an authorization of the Ordinary General Assembly of

the Company for the member to engage in the competing business.

Concept of the Competing Businesses

The following shall be deemed a participation in any business that
may compete with the Company or any of its activities:

1) The Board members’ establishing a company or a sole
proprietorship or the ownership of a controlling percentage of
shares or stakes in a Company or any other entity engages in
business activities that are similar to the activities of the Company or
its group.

2) Accepting membership in the Board of a company, an entity that
competing with the Company or its group, or managing the affairs of
a competing sole proprietorship or any competing company of any
form, except the company’s affiliates.

3) The Board member’s acting as an overt or covert commercial
agent for another company or entity competing with the Company

orits group.

Accepting Gifts
No member of the Board or Senior Executives may accept gifts from
any person who has entered into commercial transactions with the

Company if such acceptance of gifts may lead to conflicts of interest.

Decision Evaluation Rule:

A member of the Board of Directors shall be deemed to have fulfilled
his duty in the resolution he has taken or voted on in good faith, if
the following is achieved:

a- If he has no interest in the subject matter of the decision.
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If he takes note of the subject matter of the decision to the

appropriate extent in the surrounding circumstances according to

his reasonable belief.

C.

If he firmly and rationally believes that the decision is in the

interests of the company.

The burden of proof to the contrary lies with the plaintiff. The

decision means disposing or not to dispose of a matter related to the

company's business.

6. SECTION SIX: DEALING WITH MINORITY SHAREHOLDERS
POLICY

6.1. Definition:

°

6.2.

Minority shareholders are those shareholders who represent a
class of shareholders that do not control the Company and
hence they are unable to influence the Company.

The purpose of this policy is to assure there is effective
protection for the rights and interests of all categories of
shareholders as well as to prevent any conflict of interests. The
policy is intended to monitor the interests of the shareholders
and the pursuit of dialogue with respect to corporate
governance and ensure the equitable treatment of all
shareholders.

Responsibilities

The Board of Directors should examine issues coming from
minority shareholders; explain the norms of shareholder rights;
carry out the role of a go-between in disputes between parties
to a corporate conflict.

The Board should supervise the implementation of Nayifat's
executive authorities of its information policy when dealing
with the issue of control of accessibility by minority
shareholders to channels via which information is disclosed.
The Board of Directors should draft recommendations on
improving the communication activity, openness and
transparency, equality of rights for all shareholders and for the
timely receipt of the required information.

The Board should carry out a preliminary examination of all

drafts of substantive corporate actions, with respect to

protecting the rights of minority shareholders and assuring
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extra measures guaranteeing that minority shareholders are  zz1azt| J5lull in vaxd elyxl BI0Y dzxe e ey @
provided with the opportunity to influence the pursuit of these Elogs oS Oi ‘g soliaily realudl tLa.b-}( il
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shareholders. It should make recommendations on measures

that will assure extra guarantees for the exercise of rights of .
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majority of its members, should attend the meetings of :‘-’)m"‘*'l’_“b?l
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shareholders in order to carry out a dialogue outside the

obligatory rules of procedure of the meeting. Laadat) cluylell Juadly Aaslall o il
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c. leading norms of corporate governance;

d. Draftlaws and decisions of regulating authorities.
® The results of the analysis carried out should be formalized by

reports, conclusions and reviews.
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7. SECTION SEVEN: EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT

Without prejudice to the competencies entrusted to the Board
pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Law and lts
Implementing Regulations, the Executive Management shall be
responsible forimplementing the plans, policies, strategies and main
objectives of the Company in order to achieve its purposes, and the
CEO has the primary responsibility for executing the strategy set
forth by the Board and is directly responsible to the Chairman and
Members of the Board for its performance, and the achievement of
annual profit, sales and market share goals and targets. He is the
primary link between the management of the company and the EC
and is responsible to ensure that the Board is kept adequately
informed of the Company’s performance and about short, medium
and long term challenges faced by the Company.
The CEO who is responsible for leading an effective executive team
in order to maximize long term shareholder value by contributing to
the development of appropriate business strategies and ensuring the
effective implementation of those strategies. The following is the
general responsibilities of the CEO:
® |mplement strategic and tactical plans for the development of
the Company and enhancing shareholder value;
® Implementthe decisions of the Board and the General Assembly
of Shareholders;
® Implementing the Company’s internal policies and rules
approved by the Board;
® Suggesting the Company’s comprehensive strategy as well as
the principal and interim business plans and the policies and
mechanisms for investment, financing, risk management and
emergency administrative circumstances management plans
and implementing them;
®  Maintain a close liaison with the Chairman of the EC and keep

him abreast of strategic matters;

® Proposing the most appropriate capital structure for the
Company and its strategies and financial objectives;

® Proposing the main capital expenditures of the Company and

acquiring and disposing of assets;
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Prepare annual budgets for presentation to the EC and the

Board of Directors;

Review and approve all Project capital expenditure budgets,
and commit such budgets, after ratification by Board of
Directors or EC, in accordance with the Company’s delegations

of authority manual

Co-ordinate the development of the five year strategic plans for
the Company on a rolling basis, in conjunction with EC.
Preparing periodic financial and non-financial reports in respect
of the progress achieved in the business of the Company in light
of the strategic plans and objectives of the Company, and
presenting such reports to the Board;

Proposing the organizational and human resources structures
of the company and presenting them to the Board for approval;
Represent the Company with third parties and regulatory
authorities and manage the Company’s relations with third
parties;

Ensure the establishment and compliance with formal company
policies, in all areas of business for of the Company;

Perform the role of an Authorized Person, within the meaning

of the Company’s Public Communication Policy, in

communicating information to the public, including
representatives of the media. As an authorized person, the CEO
may make such a communication in person, or authorize

another individual to make such a communication;

Ensure the developmentand maintenance of relationships with
Key Regulators, Key Governmental Organizations, Key Players
in the Industry, Commercial Partners;

Ensure that all reporting requirements of Regulators are met,
and authorize the release of any financial or other
communication to them and all other regulators or government
agencies, if any;

Lead and motivate the executive team of the Company in the
sound management of the business;

Coordinate the Senior Management activities;

a. Promote and develop the company’s operating systems;

O ‘ CORPORATE GOVERNANCE MANUAL

g9 rdial] Adlosl Il Slagpuall cililine prez sletels daz i

oz did oo Lele Guaddl aay calalll sy alYy

Aaladl Gaigas dwlead B8y (il lll of 3,053

A8, ol

oolal e 88l Auased) Azl ] lalasdl jighat Guwds

sl Bl ae Ogladlly csuzmis

@ apxll puadl e ayull AU a2 AW el slac)

S, Calualy Azegliad! bhadl g § 4S,adl Jlel

B)ld ulzma e L pe g

e Luareg 38,40 s dudl o)lelly Aadaiadl JSLJ) 7148

Laslere 5l 5¥1 (ulzxo

el Slhalldl alely 2l GlLLT alel 48,401 e

2 1L e 38,401 ladle 3,15l

per @ eyl A8 Sl alY puald! Oless

AS i) Jee Lo

Jla¥l Luoliws 3 35408ll (ally ) Jgiell pase il yo5 61

Gos 23 3 ley Oyl ] Sloglall Jliay] § 48,4l a Lol

el iyl Somy Mgia Lased didimy eyl Jilus

sha¥ 53T pand paneds ol duasd Jlardl lia Jie o2

Jlas¥ lia Jie

oty )l alaill pe Bl e Blaxly jughas ol

3 Lyl Welall il sty Nl ApasSd! ladailly

bl c€ il deliall

Lolsdl et slae] aldbie e cladel oo aST

Sl e lane of Ao 8oL8) (of iy zeapmtlly conalailly

RORE IS REWYCE | JEH | 94PN (IO I F SPES ROl

Lagledl 3yl & aS,all cduaull ol ity 3ol

JleeSU!

Leladl 3,1 0¥) A8l §uaeds

Sy il Jiaad Aadail jaglasy su5as

G 4 § (rdelal) e aumddy Aminly 5y pedds o
Lelemslilul 3azs

(sl praz (e A8, A Al SLLALD jusaTgdanle .z

(65 - 68)

www.nayifat.com




SIS Y &
NayiFat

b.

Provide clear vision and encouragement to all employees

of the Company in achieving its strategies;

Review and enhance the Company’s technical skills in all

respects;

Support the development of the Company’s business by

using leading administrative and technical practices;

Communicate a clear vision to Company management of

the strategy of the Company;

Manage staff reporting directly to him and maintain a

cohesive executive team, with appropriate coaching and

guidance as required;

Convene and chair Senior Management meetings at least

monthly;

Attract and retain a management team of the required

caliber to manage the business effectively;

Proposing the policy and types of remunerations granted to

employees, as fixed remunerations, remunerations linked

to performance and remunerations in form of shares;

Monitor monthly performance targets of all departments

on a continuous basis and initiate corrective action where

necessary to ensure targets are met;

Review and recommend all monthly, quarterly and annual

financial reports before submitting them through the EC for

Board approval and sign the approved statements and

submit to Regulators;

Ensure quick resolution of any disputes or conflicts

between departments and/or individuals.

Providing the Board with the information required to

exercise its competencies and provide recommendations

regarding the following:

a) Increasing or decreasing the share capital of the
Company.

b) Dissolving the Company before the end of its term as
specified in its bylaws or deciding the continuity of it.

c) Using the consensual reserve of the Company.

d) Forming additional reserves for the Company;

e) The method for distributing the net profits of the

Company.
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8. SECTION EIGHT: UPDATE CONTROLLOG g | Szl Joeaw 1wl ME.” .8
®  This Manual will be amended from time to time as the business of Nayifat .5y , 59 alaslidl Jlael pad 2o 3Y g e A s Jyutal o °
changes and as the regulation of Nayifat develops. sl

®  The Board of Directors will ensure that this manual is kept up-to-date by
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arranging for the most recent version to be made available on the network.
®  (Changes to the Manual should be consecutively numbered and dated.

®  Enter the date of the update next to the update number on each page of the

Manual.

®  Thelogshould be used and signed off for all updates

~Policy Name . Prepared Reason of Change
Corpegte 1.0 June 2018 CRO Development of Charter
Governance
Corporate Governance Manual 2.0 Oct 2018 CRO Enhanced In line with SAMA Rules Financing
Corpelte Governance Manual 30 Sept 2018 CRO Enhanced In line with SAMA Rules for Non Financing

Companies and CMA Corporate Governance Regulations

Major Enhancement in line with SAMA, CMA Corporate

Governance, CMA Listing Rules:

e Overall Corporate Governance Section

e Board of Nayifat Section

Corporate Governance Manual 4.0 Nov 2018 CRO e Board of Nayifat Committee and addition of Strategic
Committee Section

e General Assembly Section

e Code of Conducts and Ethics Section

e Dealing with Minority Shareholder section

e Updated in line with CMA the amended Governance
Regulation of May 15™ 2019; namely;
o  Conflict of Interest Section

Corporate Governance Manual 5.0 June 2019 CRO o Competition with the Company Section

e  correcting some linguistically and grammatical errors

Correcting cross-references to the Company’s Bylaws and

other Laws and Regulations

e Updated in line with SAMA & CMA regulatory

Corporate Governance Manual 6.0 Oct 2019 CRO/Compliance requirements

e Updated New Board members

Corporate Governance Manual 7.0 Oct 2020 CRO/Compliance | ¢  Annual Update

Corporate Governance Manual 8.0 Feb 2021 CRO/Compliance | ¢ Enhancement of Nomination &Remuneration

Corporate Governance Manual 9.0 Sep 2021 CRO/Compliance | ® Nayifat Organization Structure

e Updated in line with SAMA & CMA regulatory

Corporate Governance Manual 10.0 | Dec2021 Board Secretary .
requirements
Corporate Governance Manual 11.0 | Dec 2022 Governance e Annual Update
Corporate Governance Manual 12.0 | Sep 2023 Governance e Annual Update in line with the new Companies Law.
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